
AGENDA 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

January 18, 2018 
 

Attachments to the items below can be viewed at the following link: 
http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/Cabinet/Cabinet-Packages 

 
 

  
 
ITEM 1  Respectfully submit the Minutes of the October 17, 2017 Cabinet Meeting. 
 

(See Attachment 1) 
    
  RECOMMEND APPROVAL 
 
 
ITEM 2  Respectfully submit the department’s FY 17-18 1st Quarter Performance 

Measures Report and Contracts Agreements and Purchases over $100,000 
for July 1 to September 30, 2017. 

 
(See Attachment 2) 

    
  RECOMMEND APPROVAL 
 
 
 
ITEM 3  Respectfully submit the 2018 Florida Law Enforcement Hall of Fame 

nominees. 
 

(See Attachment 3) 
    
  RECOMMEND APPROVAL 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.fdle.state.fl.us/Cabinet/Cabinet-Packages


1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS    TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA     850-697-8314

1

STATE OF FLORIDA

IN RE:  MEETING OF THE GOVERNOR AND 
    CABINET

_________________________________________/

CABINET MEMBERS: GOVERNOR RICK SCOTT 
ATTORNEY GENERAL PAM BONDI 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER JIMMY 
PATRONIS 
COMMISSIONER OF AGRICULTURE 
ADAM PUTNAM

DATE: TUESDAY, OCTOBER 17, 2017

LOCATION: CABINET MEETING ROOM
 LOWER LEVEL, THE CAPITOL

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA

REPORTED BY: NANCY S. METZKE, RPR, FPR
COURT REPORTER

C & N REPORTERS
POST OFFICE BOX 3093

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA  32315-3093
(850) 697-8314     /     FAX (850) 697-8715

nancy@metzke.com
candnreporters.com



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS    TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA     850-697-8314

2

INDEX

PAGE NO.  

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
By Commissioner Swearingen 5

State Board of Administration 
By Executive Director Williams 9

Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles
By Executive Director Rhodes 22 

Department of Veterans Affairs 
By Executive Director Sutphin 26

Department of Revenue
By Deputy Executive Director
Andrea Moreland 28 

Office of Insurance Regulation 
By Commissioner Altmaier 30

Office of Financial Regulation
By Commissioner Breakspear 37

Board of Trustees of the Internal
Improvement Trust Fund

By Secretary Valenstein 40

Division of Bond Finance
By Director Watkins 57

* * * *



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS    TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA     850-697-8314

5

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Next we get to watch Rick do 

his presentation.  You've got a few people in the 

audience, so I hope you do a good job.

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:  Can I say something 

really quick, Governor?

All of you -- this is such good memories out 

here.  Well, for me, maybe not you.  I've been 

calling all of you for probably 20 years as a young 

prosecutor, way before this -- I need DNA analyzed; 

I've got to get this murderer.  

And it never failed, never wavered.  You 

didn't know who I was, I mean you just knew I was a 

prosecutor who wanted to get my job done.  And 

thank you, thank you, thank you for everything 

you've done.  

Thanks to these women and gentlemen, we have 

solved so many murders, rapes, horrible crimes, 

because of all of you.  Thank you.

(APPLAUSE). 

COMMISSIONER SWEARINGEN:  Thank you.  And good 

morning again.  

We have three agenda items today.  First I 

respectfully submit the minutes from the 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS    TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA     850-697-8314

6

August 16th, 2017 Cabinet meeting for your 

approval. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Is there a motion? 

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:  So move.

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Is there a second? 

CFO PATRONIS:  Second. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Comments or objections? 

(NO RESPONSE).  

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Hearing none, the motion 

carries. 

COMMISSIONER SWEARINGEN:  Next is an addendum 

to the Department's fiscal year '18/'19 Legislative 

Budget Request.  This item was not included in the 

LBR request I presented at the August meeting, as 

it was going to be part of the Department of 

Management Services' budget request.  That has 

changed, and funds to build a new Pensacola 

facility has been added to our request.  

It totals about $30 million and will be one of 

our top priorities in the upcoming session.  This 

will be the third year the Department has requested 

funding for construction of the building.  The 2016 

Legislature appropriated $3 million to begin the 

architectural and engineering planning.  

We were not successful in obtaining funding 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS    TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA     850-697-8314

7

this fiscal year.  We must get funding next year to 

prevent going down a very unfortunate and expensive 

path.  Thank you for consideration.  

I'm happy to answer any questions about  

Number 2. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Is there a motion on the 

item?  

CFO PATRONIS:  So moved. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Is there a second? 

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:  Second.  

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Florida law requires the 

Governor to independently submit budget 

recommendations.  Accordingly, I am abstaining from 

the vote on this item.  

Any other comments or objections? 

(NO RESPONSE). 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Hearing none, the motion is 

approved with one abstention. 

COMMISSIONER SWEARINGEN:  Thank you.  

The last item is the Commissioner's fiscal 

year '16/'17 annual report; leadership assessment; 

and contracts, agreements, and purchases over 

$100,000 for April 1st to June 30th, 2017.  

In the interest of time, I'm going to skip 

going through those individually, but I'll be happy 



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C & N REPORTERS    TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA     850-697-8314

8

to answer any questions. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:   Are there any questions 

first off? 

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:  Looks good. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  All right.  Is there a motion 

to accept?  

COMMISSIONER PUTNAM:  So moved. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Is there a second? 

ATTORNEY GENERAL BONDI:  Second. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Comments or objections? 

(NO RESPONSE). 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Hearing none, the motion 

carries. 

COMMISSIONER SWEARINGEN:  Thank you. 

GOVERNOR SCOTT:  Thanks, Rick.  Good job.

* * * *



Number Objective Weight Range Result Score Weighted Score

1
Percentage of investigative resources 
dedicated to conducting major 
investigative activities

15%

5 = 70% or more
4 = 68-69%
3 = 66-67%
2 = 64-65%
1 = 63% and below

78.0%

2
Percentage of service requests 
completed as function of staffing and 
optimal performance

15%

5 = 25% and above
4 = 18-24%
3 = 11-17%
2 = 4-10%
1 = 3% and below

16.0%

3
Percentage of criminal history records 
compiled accurately

10%

5 = 97-100%
4 = 93-96%
3 = 89-92%
2 = 85-88%
1 = 84% and below

N/A

4
Percentage of criminal history record 
checks responded to within the 
defined timeframe

5%

5 = 100%
4 = 98-99%
3 = 96-97%
2 = 94-95%
1 = 93% and below

100.0%

5
Percentage of Biometric Identification 
System searches performed in 10 
minutes or less

5%

5 = 97-100%
4 = 93-96%
3 = 89-92%
2 = 85-88%
1 = 84% and below

94.0%

6
Percentage of time critical technology 
systems are online and accessible

10%

5 = 95-100%
4 = 90-94%
3 = 85-89%
2 = 80-84%
1 = 79% and below

99.9%

7
Number of training hours delivered to 
local, state and federal agencies

5%

5 = 800 or more
4 = 750-799 hours
3 = 700-749 hours
2 = 650-699 hours
1 = less than 650 
hours

N/A (200)

8
Percentage of officer certification 
applications processed within defined 
timeframe

5%

5 = 97-100%
4 = 94-96%
3 = 90-93%
2 = 89-86%
1 = 85% and below

100.0%

9
Percentage of customers with positive 
service rating

10%

5 = 95-100%
4 = 90-94%
3 = 85-89%
2 = 80-84%
1 = 79% and below

N/A

Total 80%

FDLE Performance Measures -  1st Quarter FY 17-18



 CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND PURCHASES OVER $100,000 
Q1 - FY 17-18 (July 1 – Sept. 30, 2017) 

 

   

 
P.O.# VENDOR/SERVICE AMOUNT 
   

B16D46 
 

3k Technologies 
IT staff augmentation - Career Offender Application for 
Statewide Tracking (COAST) and Missing Endangered 
Persons Information Clearinghouse (MEPIC) Systems.  
 State Term Contracts 
 Term:   7/1/17-6/30/18 

$156,000 
 

   
B175BE A Child Is Missing 

A Child Is Missing notifications and alert services. 
 Exempt 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

      $232,461 

   
B116D3 AB Sciex, LLC 

Maintenance and repairs for laboratory spectrometer 
equipment located in Orlando and Tallahassee Regional 
Crime Laboratories. 
 Single Source 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

      $165,943 

   
B1692A Ado Staffing, Inc. 

IT staff augmentation – Computerized Criminal History 
(CCH) System project. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term: 7/1/17-6/30/18 

      $180,000 

   
B16936* 
B16914* 
B16D48* 

Advanced Systems Design, Inc. 
IT staff augmentation - CCH, COAST and MEPIC Systems. 
 State Term Contracts 
 Term:  7/17/1/17-6/30/18 

$156,000 
$156,000 
$152,000 

   
B1D611 AutoNation CDJR Pembroke Pines, Inc. 

Purchase of seven vehicles. 
 State Term 
 Term:  One Time Purchase 

$181,860 
 

   
B16C51 
B16C60 

Bode Cellmark Forensics, Inc. 
Sexual Assault Kit (SAK) testing fees. 
 Invitation to Bid 
 Term: 7/1/17-3/31/18, 7/1/17-6/30/18 

$492,810 
$258,347 

 

   
B16ACD 
B16AC9 
B16ACB 

Brandt Information Services, Inc. 
IT staff augmentation -  Libra Mainframe and CCH 
Systems. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

$152,000 
$176,000 
$152,000 

 



P.O.# VENDOR/SERVICE AMOUNT 
 
B1BCDF 

 
Dell Marketing  
Configuration and installation of a new Compellent SC9000 
series Storage Area Network (SAN) to be installed in 
FDLE's disaster recovery location. 
 Alternate Contract Source 
 One Time Purchase 

 
$184,999 

 

   
B16675 
FDLE-005-18 

Diverse Computing, Inc. 
Maintenance and technical support services for the Florida 
Crime Information Center (FCIC) and upgrade and 
modification of communication protocols for compatibility 
with the new CCH System and existing National Law 
Enforcement Telecommunications System. 
 Single Source 
 Term: 7/1/17-6/30/18, 8/15/17-5/21/18 

$128,550 
$107,000 

 

   
B16C64 
B16C65 

DNA Labs International, Inc. 
Non-Sexual Assault Kit (Non-SAK) testing fees and SAK 
testing fees. 
 Alternate Contract 
 Term: 7/1/17-4/20/18 

$226,000 
$217,900 

 

   
B1D544 Emergent, LLC 

Red Hat Enterprise software licenses and maintenance. 
 Alternate Contract 
 Term:  10/1/17-9/30/18 

$179,552 
 

   
FDLE-003-18 Georgia Tech Applied Research Corp. 

IT and business consulting services for creating a National 
Incident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS) System.  
 Exempt 
 Term:   8/1/17-6/30/18 

$416,000 
 

   
B168AB* 
B16AC4* 
B16933* 
B16892* 
B1690E* 
B1688B* 
B168AF* 
B1692C* 
B16D47* 
B1691D* 

Global Information Services 
IT staff augmentation – Quality Assurance and 
Performance Testing System, Enterprise Document 
Management, Rap-Back and Automated Fingerprint ID 
System, Sexual Offender/Predator Registry, Firearms 
Eligibility System (FES), CCH System, Uniform Crime 
Reporting and other IT systems. 
 State Term Contracts 
 Terms:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

$158,000  
 $160,000  
 $164,000  
 $180,000  
 $165,000  
 $152,000  
 $160,000  
 $162,000  
 $150,000 
$160,000 

   
B16911 Infinity Software Development, Inc. 

IT staff augmentation – Various IT systems. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term:   7/1/17-6/30/18 

$170,000 
 

  
 
 

 
 



 CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND PURCHASES OVER $100,000 
Q1 - FY 17-18 (July 1 – Sept. 30, 2017) 

 

   

 
P.O.# VENDOR/SERVICE AMOUNT 
B16AC2 KLC Consulting, Inc. 

IT staff augmentation –  Sexual Offender/Predator Registry. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term:   7/1/17-6/30/18 

$160,000 
 

   
B168A9 
B168C5 
B168B3 
B16916 
B1691A 
B16930 
B16AD2 

Kyra Solutions, Inc. 
IT staff augmentation -  Sexual Offender/Predator Registry, 
Revenue Accounting Management Systems, Business 
Systems, Grants Information Management System,  
Automated Training Management System, Professionalism 
system and other IT systems. 
 State Term Contracts 
 Term: 7/1/17-6/30/18 

$242,000  
 $169,000  
 $168,000  
 $164,000  
 $154,000  
 $152,000  
 $175,000   

   
B1232A LexisNexis Risk Solutions FL, Inc. 

Software license for Accurint LE Plus. 
 Alternate Contract Source 
 Term:    7/1/17-6/30/17 

$106,300  
  

   
B1A5F8 
B1C9C6 
B1901C 

Life Technologies Corp. 
Reagents for Orlando, Tallahassee and Tampa Bay 
Regional Crime Laboratories. 
 Single Source 
 Term:  One Time Purchase 

$163,831  
 $289,597  
 $188,921  

   
FDLE-031-17 MorphoTrak, Inc. 

Biometric Identification Solution (BIS) Upgrade and 
modification to interface directly with new CCH System. 
 Single Source 
 Term:  9/1/16-8/31/23 

$249,900  
 

   
B1EB15 NicheVision Forensics, LLC 

Probabilistic genotyping software and license, 
upgrade/training for all FDLE crime laboratories. 
 Single Source 
 Terms:  One Time Purchase 

$286,705 
 

   
FDLE-007-16 Northrop Grumman Information Technology, Inc. 

Maintenance and support for the Regional Law 
Enforcement Exchange (RLEX) replacement System and 
new mappings to an existing sharing system connected to 
Florida Law Enforcement Exchange (FLEX). 
 Invitation to Negotiate 
 Terms:   12/23/15-3/14/20 

$3,522,987 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
P.O.# VENDOR/SERVICE AMOUNT 
B1DC99* Optimum Software Solutions, Inc. 

IT staff augmentation - Project Manager for Sexual 
Offender / Predator Registry Improvement Project. 
 State Term Contract 
 Terms:   9/22/17-6/30/18 

$152,600 
 

   
B16862 Presidio Networked Solutions, Inc. 

Maintenance and technical support for Cisco Enterprise 
routers, network switches and VOIP Phone System.  
 Alternate Contract 
 Term:   7/1/17-6/30/18 

$187,810 
 

   
B16860 Randstad Technologies, LP 

IT staff augmentation - Florida Fusion Center SharePoint 
Site.  
 State Term Contract 
 Term:   7/1/17-6/30/18 

$170,000 
 

   
B16AAE* Sanrose Information Services, Inc. 

IT staff augmentation – Sexual Offender / Predator Registry 
Improvement Project. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/17 

$140,000 
 

   
B168A1 Seva Technologies, LLC 

IT staff augmentation – MEPIC System. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term: 7/29/17-6/30/18 

       $158,000 

   
PO1351966 
PO1454762 

SHI International Corp. 
Oracle Database Enterprise Edition software licenses and 
maintenance for new CCH System and Oracle software 
license and support update. 
 Alternate Contract 
 Terms: 1/1/17-12/31/20, 7/1/17-6/30/18 

       $683,760  
      $616,419 

   
B16C66 Sorenson Forensics, LLC 

SAK testing fees. 
 Invitation to Bid 
 Term: 7/1/17-6/30/18 

$892,200 
 

   
B16ABF 
B1692E 
B1692B 

Strategic IT Alignment Group, LLC 
IT staff augmentation – Business systems, Sexual 
Offender/Predator Registry and Professionalism system. 
 State Term Contracts 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

$150,000 
$156,000 
$158,000 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 CONTRACTS, AGREEMENTS AND PURCHASES OVER $100,000 
Q1 - FY 17-18 (July 1 – Sept. 30, 2017) 

 

   

 
 

 
P.O.# VENDOR/SERVICE AMOUNT 
B15370 Summit East Investors 

Lodging for Special Agent Training Class 39. 
 Direct Pay to Motel 
 Term: 8/27/17-11/9/17 

       $197,200 

 
B16863 
B16ACF 
B168B0 

 
System Soft Technologies, LLC 
IT staff augmentation – FES, FLEX and Sexual 
Offender/Predator Registry. 
 State Term Contracts 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

 
$160,000 
$150,000 
$160,000 

  
 

 

B168AD 
B16AC7 
B16872 

Tal Search Group, Inc. 
IT staff augmentation – Statewide Law Enforcement Data 
Project, Sexual Offender/Predator Registry and FCIC II 
Message Switch and Hot Files System. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term:  7/1/17-6/30/18 

       $180,000 
$150,000 
$156,000 

   
PO1455422 Tampa Electric Company 

Utility services for Tampa Bay Regional Operations Center. 
 Exempt 
 Term:  6/14/17-6/17/18 

       $282,000 

   
PO1455347 Ultra Electronics Forensic Technology, Inc. 

Safeguard extended warranty and protection plan for 
laboratory equipment located in Tampa and Jacksonville. 
 Single Source 
 Term: 7/1/17-6/30/19 

       $220,800 

   
B19439 
 

Vcarve, Inc. 
IT staff augmentation - Project Manager for Open Arrest 
Disposition Research Project. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term: 7/31/17-6/30/18 

       $172,480 

   
B16898* Vitaver & Associates, Inc.  

IT staff augmentation - Enterprise Content Management. 
 State Term Contract 
 Term:   7/1/17-6/30/18 

       $193,000 



The Florida Law Enforcement Officers’ Hall of Fame 
 

 
 

The Florida Law Enforcement Officers’ Hall of Fame recognizes and honors law enforcement 
officers who put their lives on the line for the safety and protection of Florida’s citizens and visitors 
through their works, service and exemplary accomplishments.  
 
Nominations were accepted from the Florida Sheriffs Association, the Florida Police Chiefs 
Association, the Police Benevolent Association, the Fraternal Order of Police and the State Law 
Enforcement Chiefs’ Association. One representative from each association also served as the 
Selection Committee that identified five nominees for consideration for approval by the Governor 
and Cabinet. An induction ceremony will be held on May 19, 2018. 
 
2018 Hall of Fame Nominees 

Robert E. Blackburn began his career in 1941 with the Florida Highway Patrol. He also served as a 
deputy in Volusia and Hillsborough counties prior to being elected Hillsborough County Sheriff in 
1952, where he served 12 years. He was an active member of the Florida Sheriffs Association, 
serving as president from 1964-1965. He successfully lobbied for legislation that led to the 
creation of the Florida law enforcement academy, established professional standards for law 
enforcement and standardized the Sheriff badge and vehicles. He was instrumental in the creation 
of the Florida Sheriffs Youth Ranches, which has served more than 145,000 young men and 
women throughout the state. From 1968-1978, he was a member of the Florida House of 
Representatives, where he was considered the “voice of law enforcement”. He was successful in 
passing bills enhancing the Florida Crime Information System and the Florida Department of Law 
Enforcement’s statewide crime laboratory system. In 1979, he was appointed as Interim 
Commissioner of FDLE. Blackburn, who died in 1997, will be remembered as a pioneer for modern 
Florida law enforcement. 

Donald F. Eslinger began his career as a radio dispatcher in 1978 before he advanced through the 
ranks as a patrol deputy, investigator, watch commander and special weapons and tactics team 
leader with the Seminole County Sheriff’s Office. He was appointed Seminole County Sheriff on 
January 1, 1991, elected in 1992, and reelected for five additional terms until his retirement in 
2017. He served 38 years with the Seminole County Sheriff’s Office and is the longest serving 
sheriff in Seminole County history. His tenure as sheriff was marked with drastic reductions in 
crime, along with advocacy for mental health and youth programs. Contributions to youth include 
founding Kids House, “Shop with the Sheriff” and “Christmas Village”, assuming responsibility for 
child protective services from the state and creating a successful civil citation diversion program. 
Under his leadership, the agency grew from 539 positions with a $25.8 million budget to 1,184 
positions with a 107.5 million budget.   



Ernest W. George began his career with the West Palm Beach Police Department in 1975, where 
he remained until he retired in 2005. In his early career, he worked in the roughest areas of West 
Palm Beach. He became a D.A.R.E. officer working with elementary school children on the dangers 
of drugs in the late 1980s and was promoted to sergeant in January 1996. He also served as the 
president of the Palm Beach County Police Benevolent Association from 1987-2006 and president 
of the Florida Police Benevolent Association (PBA) from 1996-2006. His passion to raise the 
standards for law enforcement led him to an appointment to the Criminal Justice and Standards 
Training Commission in 2001, which he chaired from 2010-2013. While on the Commission, he 
strengthened the professional standards for Florida’s law enforcement and correctional officers, 
while remaining firm in his belief that every officer deserves equal and fair treatment. As president 
of the PBA, he achieved numerous legislative enhancements including creating uniform guidelines 
for the use of dart firing stun guns, creating the Florida Retirement System Deferred Retirement 
Option Program and enhancing law enforcement officer death benefits. 

Frederick A. Maas is a 43-year veteran of law enforcement and continues to serve his community 
today. He began his career at the Miami-Dade Police Department in 1975 and served in multiple 
roles until he retired in 1998. In 1998, he was hired at Sunny Isles Beach Police Department and 
promoted to chief in October 1999. He leads by example and demonstrates this by covering a shift 
so officers can be at home with their family on Christmas or attend a significant family event. He 
was appointed by the Governor to the Violent Crime and Drug Control Council. After years of 
receiving the “Outstanding Law Enforcement Leadership Award” from the Dade County Police 
Benevolent Association, they named the award in his honor. “The Fred Maas Law Enforcement 
Leadership Award” is for individuals who embody true leadership, inspire those around them and 
make a difference in the lives of those they serve. In 2008, he received the highest law 
enforcement award from the Vatican, when he was named a Knight of St. Sylvester by Pope 
Benedict for his lifetime of dedication and service in law enforcement. 

James W. Smith began his career in 1964 as the first African American police officer with the 
Miami Beach Police Department. At the age of 34, he was one of the oldest rookies. He earned the 
reputation of being professional, sincere and empathetic towards others. He was promoted to 
sergeant in 1971 and quickly promoted through the ranks. In 1989, he was promoted to Major, the 
position he led until he retired in September 1990. He worked in or supervised every major unit at 
the department throughout his career. He displayed a commitment to the community he served, 
and helped to create a youth group for at risk boys in the Liberty City area. In his honor, the Miami 
Beach Police Department named their community room the “Major James W. Smith Community 
Room”.  Smith, who died in 2017, overcame the racial divide in America to inspire others with his 
fair but firm leadership. 



FLORIDA LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS'
HALL OF FAME

Nomination Form

ATTACHMENT CHECKLIST:

B Summary of nominee's professional law enforcement history.

B Two page description of why nominee should be selected (include description of their

contributions to law enforcement).

B Agency/Department photo

B Proof of nominee's outstanding performance, actions, accomplishments, and character

(e.g. any professional acts of excellence above and beyond minimum standards). Examples

include letters of recommendation, official reports, statements, newspaper article(s), and/or

other media archive historical references.

B Summary of civic contributions and/or humanitarian activities. Describe as completely as

possible, the nominee's local, state and national level of service in civic organizations. Include

information about community involvement in crime prevention, charitable activities, etc. Also

describe as completely as possible the nominee's contributions in any humanitarian service.

B List of awards and honors

B Any additional information to consider

NOTE: Required items are in bold.

Documents should be typed using 11 pt font, or larger, and packets must not exceed 10 pages.

Application deadline is August 31 of the year prior to the year of induction [e.g., August 31, 2015 for

induction in 2016).

Form FAME-1, New January 1, 2015 Incorporated by reference in Rule 11D-10.002(3)(a), F.A.C.



FLORIDA LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS'
HALL OF FAME

Nomination Form

Deadline - August 31

NOMINEE INFORMATION: fulease printl

Full Legal Name: Robert Edward Blackburn

Home Address:

City: _ State: _ Zip Code:
Home #: _ Cell #; _ Work #:
Email Address:

Resident of Florida? B Yes D No If yes, how many years?,85

State of birth: _ Date of birth: Day_ Month _Year

Is nominee deceased? B Yes D No If yes, year deceased:

Was nominee's death caused by an incident in the line of duty? D Yes B No

If yes, explain.

Years in Law Enforcement: _ Retired? B Yes D No Mo./Year retired;.

positioncs) held: Sheriff of Hillsborough County

Any honor/awards received? B Yes D No If yes, please include a list as an attachment.

If Nominee is deceased, please provide family point of contact:

Full Name:

Relationship to deceased:

Home Address:

City: _ State: _ Zip Code:
Home #: _ Cell #: _ Work #:.
Email Address:

NOTE: Nominee and nominator will be contacted if nominee is selected to be inducted.

Form FAME-1, New January 1, 2015 Incorporated by reference in Rule 11D-10.002(3)(a), F.A.C.



FLORIDA LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS'
HALL OF FAME

Nomination Form

NOMINATOR INFORMATION: fplease printl

Full Name: Sheriff Ben Stewart

Title:.

Association/Organization: Florida sheriffs Association

Work Address: 2364 W. US 90

City: Madison _ State: fL_ Zip code: 32340

Wo,k #:850-973-4151

Email Address: sheriff@mcso-fl.org

I hereby affirm the information contained herein is accurate to the best of my

knowledge and understanding. The information provided is in congruence with the

Nomination Eligibility Requirements and Guidelines. I agree to provide additional

information if requested by the Florida Law Enforcement Officers' Hall of Fame

Selection Committee.

Signature [Required]: ' —W-Ofc^y p^^ 8/14/2017

NOTE: Only nominator will be contacted if the nominee is not selected.

Please mail this form and corresponding attachments postmarked by August 31 to:

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
ATTN; Florida Law Enforcement Officers' Hall of Fame Coordinator

P.O. Box 1489

Tallahassee, FL. 32302-1489

Should you have any questions or concerns contact the Florida Law Enforcement Officers'

Hall of Fame Coordinator at [850) 410-8600 or FLEOHOF(a)fdle.state.fl.us.

Form FAME-1, New January 1, 2015 Incorporated by reference in Rule 11D-10.002(3)(a), F.A.C.



Summary of nominee's professional law enforcement history

A native ofTampa, Sheriff Robert Edward Blackburn, Jr., began his law enforcement

career in 1941 as one of the early members of the Florida Highway Patrol, patrolling

on a motorcycle to bring safety to Florida's roadways. Leaving FHP, he later served

as a deputy sheriff in both Volusia and Hillsborough Counties. Stepping away from

law enforcement for a brief period, he became a successful businessman and realtor

in Tampa.

Unable to remain away from his chosen profession, he was elected the reform

candidate for Hillsborough County Sheriff in 1952 and began the modernization of
that agency. During his twelve-year tenure, he focused on combating corruption in

Tampa, adding progressive law enforcement operations to the Hillsborough County

Sheriffs Office, reforming and enhancing the Office of the Sheriff from a statewide
perspective, and offering services to the youth of the State.

After leaving office in 1965, Sheriff Blackburn continued his service to law
enforcement, our criminal justice system, and the citizens of this State. From 1968-

1978, he served as a member of the Florida House of Representatives, sponsoring

legislation that has an impact of Florida law enforcement to this day. In 1979, he

was asked by Governor Bob Graham to serve as Interim Commissioner of the

Florida Department of Law Enforcement, pending selection of a new agency head to

succeed Commissioner William A. Troelstrop. Finally, from 1988 until his death in

1997, he served as an informal advisor to FDLE Commissioner James T. Moore.

Description of why nominee should be selected to the Hall of Fame

Over the course of nearly 60 years of public service. Sheriff Robert Edward

Blackburn, Jr., had a tremendous impact on law enforcement in the State of Florida

and its citizens and visitors. His contributions can best be captured in four areas:

Service as Sheriff

In the years immediately after World War II, Florida began to grow in terms of

population and criminal activity, especially criminal behavior which shared no

respect for jurisdictional boundaries. Citizens were calling for a more professional

and creative type of law enforcement to deal with the State's emerging crime

problems. Consequently, the 1952 election saw the election of a number of new,

progressive sheriffs, including Sheriff Blackburn, who were concerned about

bringing a sense of professionalism to their agencies and who could band together

to combat crime at the local level and that which occurred across county lines.

On the Tampa homefront. Sheriff Blackburn focused on a number of key issues,

including a multi-year enforcement campaign against organized crime and

especially illegal gambling, including bolita, that had brought Tampa and
Hillsborough County significant negative national attention. His efforts frequently

included raids coordinated with the sheriffs in his neighboring Pinellas and Polk



Counties. He worked on enhancing the professional abilities of those employed by

the Sheriffs Office and the addition of units, such as the agency's first marine unit, to

meet the changing needs of Hillsborough's growing population.

On the statewide front. Sheriff Blackburn was an active member of the Florida

Sheriffs Association, serving as President of the Association in 1964-65. During his

tenure as Sheriff, he and the FSA leadership were able to successfully lobby for

legislation that led to the:
» Abolition of the fee system requiring sheriffs to finance the operation of their

agencies through the collection of fees for activities and services they

performed.

» Establishment of the Florida Sheriffs Bureau [forerunner of the present

Florida Department of Law Enforcement) and on whose administrative

board he sat. The Florida Sheriffs Bureau, in operation until 1967, included

investigative staff, laboratory services, and statewide crime and criminal files

• Creation of the Florida Law Enforcement Academy

• Setting of professional standards for all of Florida's law enforcement officers

• Standardization of the Sheriffs badge and car marking for Sheriffs' vehicles

throughout the State.

Service as a Member of the House of Representatives

Sheriff Blackburn successfully ran for the Florida House of Representatives in 1968

and served five terms as a representative from the Tampa area, retiring in 1978.

During his time as a legislator, he clearly was recognized as the "voice of law

enforcement," and his leadership led to the successful passage of bills enhancing

what is now the Florida Crime Information System and FDLE's statewide crime

laboratory system.

The Florida Sheriffs Boys Ranch
After learning about a successful ranch in Texas that housed hundreds of

underprivileged and neglected boys, Sheriff Blackburn, Sheriff Don Genung from

Pinellas County, and Sheriff Don McLeod from Marion County, pushed for the

creation of a Florida's boy's ranch for troubled youth in our State. On June 19,1957,

after two years of planning and discussion, a projects committee of the Florida

Sheriffs Association recommended $5,000 be placed in a special trust fund to start

the Florida Sheriffs Boys Ranch. FSA's Board of Directors subsequently approved

that funding and began a statewide search for a suitable site for the new Boys

Ranch. Finally, on October 2,1957, FSA members met in St. Petersburg at Johnny

Leverocks' restaurant where they passed a trust agreement placing the Boys Ranch

project in the hands of a Board of Trustees composed of Sheriffs and private citizens.

They also approved the site on the Suwannee River, eleven miles north of Live Oak.

Sheriff Blackburn was appointed as the first (unpaid) Executive Director.

Today, some 60 years after his leadership resulted in the establishment of the Boys

Ranch, it continues to exist as the Florida Sheriffs Youth Ranches, serving Florida's



children through programs at four residential sites, camping services at two sites,

and summer programming in myriad communities upon request of the Sheriff.

Sheriff Blackburn's lasting legacy rests in the more than 145,000 young men and

women served by the Youth Ranches over the last 60 years.

Service as Commissioner of the Florida Department of Law Enforcement

In 1979, Sheriff Blackburn was asked by Governor Bob Graham to serve as Interim

Commissioner of the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, pending selection of

a new agency head to succeed Commissioner William A. Troelstrop. Although only

serving for several months, his tenure was marked by his strong leadership,

including a willingness to show up at investigations being conducted by his

investigators, and a philosophy of focusing FDLE's activities on meeting the needs of

their customers-local law enforcement agencies—in a timely, professional, and

effective manner.

In summary, then. Sheriff Robert Edward Blackburn, Jr., is one of the pioneers of

modern Florida law enforcement. His actions as a law enforcement leader, a

legislator, and a true visionary led to many of the successes and the framework we

have in Florida's criminal justice system even today.



Sheriff 'Ed'
Blackburn dies

ormer Hillsborough County

sheriff and state legislator
Robert Edward "Ed" Black-

burn, Jr, died of natural causes on

December 8,1997, in an assisted liv-

ing facility m T^Uahassee. He was 85.

Blackburn was sheriff in Tampa
from 1953-65, and he served in the

Florida House from 1968-78.
Co-owner of a grocery store in

Tampa before entering political life, he
was a foraaer highway patrohnan and

deputy sheriff as well. He jumped

into the sheriff's race in 1952,at a

time, according to the Tampa TMbune,

"when Tampa's officialdom was in dis-

array in the wake ofU.S. Senate hear-

ings that exposed a wide swath of

corruption tied to gambling inter-

ests..... crooked elections, mob killings

and a tarnished national reputation, a

magazine then called T^mpa the Hell-
hole of the Gulf Coast.'

At the time, the Tribune sup-

ported Blackburn as a reform-minded

candidate.

As sheriff, Blackburn coordinated
efforts with adjacent counties to stage
raids on gambling operations tied in
with a Tiunpa syndicate.

After three terms as sheriff,

Blackburn attempted an unsuccessful

bid for the seat as 'fampa's mayor. In

a bid for a fourth term as sheriff, he

Over a decade ago, Sheriff Ed Blackburn stands
on the floor of the Florida House of Representa-
lives, and blows a kiss to a delegation of HIUsbor-
ough County school children who came to visit
Taltahassee.

lost to Malcolm Beard. A few years later,

Blackburn ran and won an open seat in

the Florida House, a post he held for ten
years.

In 1979, Blackburn was appointed
interim-director of FDLE, and that

agency's Tampa headquarters building

was named in his honor in 1991.

Of all the good things Blackburn did
during his lifetime, he may most be
remembered as one of the two sherifis m

the mid-fifties who founded the Florida
Sheriffs Boys Ranch in Live Oak. The
legacy lives on with facilities all across

Florida operating as the Florida Sheriffs

Youth Ranches, Inc.

Sheri£F Blackburn was preceded
in death by his wife, Frances. His

ashes have been scattered along the

banks of the Suwannee River, on the

property of the Florida Sheriffs Boys
Ranch, at a spot near where the first

shovel of dirt was turned in 1957.

Oelrich promotes
"Ultimate Gift" campaign

Courtesy ofBeth Kassab and the
Florida Allisator

GAINESVILLE - The Alachua
County SherifTs Office is handing out
a little somethmg extra this month in
its' employees pay envelopes this

month.

It is not the usual holiday bonus,
but officials are confident that it will
save lives. Instead, their sheriff is

encouraging employees to become

organ and tissue donors by inserting

registration cards in their paychecks.

Sheriff" Steve Oelrich knows only
too weU why this is such an important
program. Oelrich is the recently

named national spokesman for the

National Sheriff's Association Gift of
Life Foundation.

At a press conference held at

Shands Hospital in early December to
kickoflFthe national campaign, Oehich
stood alongside a photograph of his
18-year old son, Nick, a young man

continued on page 7



The parents confessed that they had made the victim stand up all day in the living room blindfolded and
gave him water when he asked. He was beaten for two days. The floor underneath the victim had black spots
where the victim shuffled his feet as he hanged from the rafters. Both parents were convicted for his murder. In
the May primary election for Sheriff, Elbert Moore was defeated by Ed Blackburn Jr.

ED BLACKBURN
1953 - 1965

In the Sheriff's election of November 1953, Robert Edward Black-
burn, Jr., defeated former Sheriff Jerry McLeod in "one of the largest
turnovers in top county command." Blackburn moved into office in the
wake of a double gangland slaying that remained unsoh^ed. Rene Nunez
and Angela Giglio had met their deaths, and there had been a recent
attempt on the life of Santo Trafficante, Jr., who was being sought as a
witness by the Kefauver Committee.

Blackburn's ancestors dot the pioneer history of state politics from
1826. His grandfather, Benjamin Blackburn, was supervisor of voter
registration in Hillsborough County for 14 years. His father, Ed Black-
bum, Sr., was Tampa's last Tax Assessor before the office was com-

bined with the county's in 1945. He said that politics were in his genes.
In 1947 he managed a friend's campaign for City Council.

In 1952 a U. S. Senate investigative committee, led by Tennessee
Senator Estes Kefauver came to Florida and exposed government of-
ficials linked to gamblers. Sheriff Hugh Culbreath was indicted by the
Grand Jury and removed from office by Governor Warren. Later, he
was reinstated, but chose not to run for re-election.

During the upcoming election, a field of eight candidates scurried for the job. Although he had little political
sxperienceforthejob, Blackburn persuaded voters that he would wage an honest campaign against the under-
A/orld elements who, for too long, had corrupted Tampa's name with gangland violence. The Tampa Tribune
sndorsed him on a cleanup campaign. He won the job.

In the May primary against Elbert Moore, he told stories of several high school classmates who had prom-
sing futures but wound up in Tampa's illegal bolita racket. He ran large full page advertisements in The Tampa
Fribune headlined, "Are you your brother's keeper?" He mentioned what had happened to his friends, Jimmie
^elasco, Jimmie Lumia and Rene Nunez as part of his war on organized crime corruption.

Quickly, Blackburn began his quest to reform Hillsborough County. He conducted gambling raids locally
and in other counties, with the cooperation of other Sheriffs. Illegal gambling began to dwindle, but it remained
a thorn in Blackburn's side for the twelve years he was Sheriff.

In 1955, gambling czar, Charlie Wall, was found bludgeoned to death with his throat slashed in his Ybor City
lome. Blackburn spearheaded the investigation and many theories abounded about the identity of the killer.
Fhere were no signs of a break-in, so it was believed that the person was someone Wall trusted. However, no
arrest was ever made, and the case remains unsolved.

47



Blackburn was easily re-elected in 1956 and 1960. In 1963 he ran against Julian Lane for Mayor. He came
in third behind Lane and the winner, Nick C. Nuccio. Looking back, Blackburn said, "It was a stupid thing for me
to do." One year later, the decision may have cost him the election for Sheriff to Constable Malcolm E. Beard.
During the time he was Sheriff, Blackburn was a founder of the Florida Sheriffs Association, and he was the first
director of the Florida Sheriffs Boys Ranch.

In 1968 a seat in the Florida House of Representatives became vacant, and then Sheriff Malcolm Beard
encouraged Blackburn to run. This endorsement was touched by a bit of irony, for it was Beard who had just
defeated Blackburn four years earlier in a bitter campaign. Their political differences had healed, and today, the
two are now friends. In 1 978 the tale was different, as it was Blackburn who was retiring to enter private busi-

ness and who pushed Beard to run for his then vacant seat.

In 1991, the Regional Headquarters for the Florida Department of Law Enforcement in Tampa was named
for Ed Blackburn. He sen/ed as executive director of the agency on an interim basis in 1979. During the time he
served as State Representative, he helped establish the FDLE and its laboratory. Ed Blackburn, now 81, is
officially retired and lives in Tallahassee with his wife.
























































































































	FDLEAgenda1.18.2018
	AGENDA

	transcript10.17.17
	Performance Measures1stQuarter_FY17.18
	Sheet1

	Q1Contractsover$100K_draft
	AMOUNT
	AMOUNT
	AMOUNT
	AMOUNT
	AMOUNT

	Cabinet Summary of Hall of Fame Nominees - 2018
	Blackburn
	Eslinger_Redacted
	George, Ernest_Redacted
	Hall of Fame Nomination for SIB Fred Maas_Redacted
	Major James Smith_Redacted
	FDLEAgenda1.18.2018.pdf
	AGENDA




